
Minutes 
Airport Advisory Board 

January 26, 2009 
 

 
On this 26th day of January 2009, at 6:00 p.m., the Airport Advisory Board of the City of 
Devine convened in a meeting, and the following members thereof, being present: 
 
    Russ Pumphrey, Airport Manager 
    Bill Bain 
    C.E. (Curly) Brehm 
    Tony Crosby 
    Hap Squires 
    Glen Dale Estep 
 
Thus, constituting a quorum. 
 
Personnel Present:  Steve A. Lopez, Mayor; Dora V. Rodriguez, City Administrator; and 
Ofilia Pedroza, Assistant City Secretary. 
 
Others present:  Sandy Herrera, Devine News; Bruce McWhorter, Eldora Brehm, Maria 
Barbosa, and Greg Coyne, of Devine, Texas. 
 
Even though it wasn’t on the agenda, the Board discussed they needed to vote for a 
chairman before being able to proceed. 
 
Motioned by C.E. (Curly) Brehm, seconded by Tony Crosby to nominate Glen Dale Estep 
for Chairman. 
 
    Ayes  --  All 
    Nays  --  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Chairman Glen Dale Estep then called the meeting to order. 
 
The first order of business was to discuss and consider approval of Minutes for June 8, 2004. 
 
The Airport Advisory Board reviewed the minutes. 
 
Motioned by Bill Bain, seconded by C.E. (Curly) Brehm to approve the Minutes for June 8, 
2004. 
 
    Ayes  --  All 
    Nays  --  None 
 
Motion carried. 



Airport Advisory Board Minutes 
January 26, 2009 
Page 2 
 
Curley Brehm held discussion on the need to bring in newer and younger people to join the 
Airport Advisory Board.  Again, even though this wasn’t on the agenda, he felt it was an 
informal meeting and talked about nominating Greg Coyne and Bruce McWhorter to the 
Board.  Discussion was held on there being no limit and no minimum as to the number of 
people on the board. 
 
Motioned by Curly Brehm, seconded by Glen Dale Estep to recommend that Devine City 
Council appoint Greg Coyne and Bruce McWhorter as members of the Airport Advisory 
Board, at their next regular meeting. 
 
    Ayes  --  All 
    Nays  --  None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
The second order of business was to discuss and consider lease contracts. 
 
Chairman Estep asked the Board if anyone had any discussion on the rent of the lease 
contracts. 
 
Bill Bain commented that it was obvious that the City of Devine wants to increase the lease 
rates; otherwise, we wouldn’t be having this meeting.  He said he and City Administrator 
Dora V. Rodriguez had talked about it a couple of years ago and had asked if City Attorney 
Tom Cate could look over everyone’s leases and show them where they are obligated to 
accept the change.  He said that some of them, even if not obligated, may still accept the 
change, but it would be nice if they knew whether they are being told the lease rates were 
going to go up or if they were asked to let them go up.  Discussion was held on there being 
different types of leases; not all of them are the same.  Mr. Bain asked City Attorney Tom 
Cate if the City of Devine can go up, for example, on his lease whether he likes it or not.  
 
City Tom Cate said he needed to backtrack and explained that what brought this up in the 
first place is that the federal aviation people came down and reviewed our leases and they 
were concerned that we didn’t have an escalation clause for the rent on our leases.  Tom 
explained that this has been going since the mid-1980’s.  Bill Bain said he was aware this has 
been going on for awhile; he just didn’t remember it going that far back.  He said maybe it 
just wasn’t brought up to the Airport Advisory Board to change it at that time. 
 
City Attorney Tom Cate said this goes back to when Bob Miller was city manager, which was 
a long time ago.  Discussion was held that Mr. Miller never talked to anybody about 
anything; he just did it, or he didn’t do it.  Tom Cate agreed that in this case, Mr. Miller just 
took it upon himself not to do anything.  He said that in the last correspondence with  
the federal aviation people, they still wanted to know what we are doing with the rent; they 
thought that it was too low.  He said this is the reason we are trying to work with everybody 
out at the airport to see if we can get it straightened out. 



Airport Advisory Board Minutes 
January 26, 2009 
Page 3 
 
 
City Administrator Dora V. Rodriguez mentioned that during our budget workshops, the 
City Council reviews all the budget line items and this is one of the items that they 
addressed. City Council is aware that the Airport does what they want with all the businesses 
there, because pretty much the City only owns the property and we only take care of the 
property; however, they wanted to know if it was time to consider increasing the rent on the 
leases.  She explained that some of the council members felt it was time to have a meeting 
with the Airport Advisory Board. 
 
Mr. Bain talked about his personal lease and said he’d like to know if the leases are invalid.  
City Attorney Tom Cate explained we’ve been talking with different folks at the airport 
about this problem for the past couple of years.  He explained we haven’t really been getting 
after anybody; we’ve just been trying to work this out and trying to accommodate the federal 
government.  He said this is the way that the City would prefer to do business; we don’t 
want to cross ways with anyone. 
 
Mr. Curly Brehm said no one has been out there to talk to him and he’s the largest lease 
holder out there.  Mr. Brehm said he remembers talking about it at the last airport advisory 
meeting but it died down.  Mr. Brehm talked to the board in reference to his own operations 
at the airport, and not from anyone else’s.  He said the advantages of the City having an 
international operation at the airport would be that customers would be able to stay at local 
hotels, eat at local restaurants and rent cars locally, which would contribute to the economy 
of Devine.  He spoke of one client from Mexico who did this in Devine for 45 days while 
they repaired his airplane at the airport.  Another gentleman from Cedar Rapids, Iowa was 
here last winter (during their floods), and he contacted Curly last week to help him find a 
house in Devine because he wants to move here, which means our local real estate business 
would benefit from that also. 
 
Mr. Curly Brehm said the airport paid taxes for the improvements out there as if they owned 
the real estate; they do not own the property, the City does.  Mr. Brehm mentioned that 
today they have four operations at the airport (which do not belong to him) and they all pay 
local taxes. He spoke of our airport being advertised to the entire world, and it is not 
uncommon in aviation publications to find something like “overhauled by Devine,” 
“refurbished by Devine.”  He asked, “What’s it worth globally to have your name spread 
around?”  He said he is the only lease holder who has made improvements at the airport 
such as ramps, automobile parking, etc.  He said, “We’ve improved your airport!”   
 
Mr. Brehm stated that during this recession period that we are in, it seems to him that the 
City of Devine should consider lowering the rents instead of raising them.  He explained  
they are barely surviving; it’s not like it was five years ago.  He spoke in detail of many 
companies that are going under.  He said airplanes cost money and added that they do have 
a problem that they may not survive at the airport.  Mr. Brehm stated that he is aware that 
Alderman Cortez is interested in getting more rent from the airport, but emphasized that 
this is not the time to start increasing their rates; he said this is wrong! 



Airport Advisory Board Minutes 
January 26, 2009 
Page 4 
 
 
Mr. Brehm told City Administrator Dora V. Rodriguez that he does have a possible solution 
that probably may not cost anyone any money.  He said the City has the authority to sell gas 
at that airport.  He said we could be increasing the number of aircraft to work on, to get 
repaired, or that need painting – if we provided gas.  He said that not having this service 
makes our airport unattractive to pilots and other people.  The closest airport for fueling is 
in Castroville. Mr. Brehm explained that many of the small airports of our size have installed 
self-service gas stations.  They require absolutely no labor, except when the gas truck comes.  
He explained that customers would just insert their credit cards, pump the gas they need, 
and would be on their way.  He explained that this would be about a 10¢/gallon profit for 
the City.  He said we also may want to check with one of the bulk distributers.  The reason 
Mr. Brehm said he has knowledge of this is because he’s been in the gas business. He said 
their name is Aviation Fuels, Inc. 
 
In closing, Mr. Brehm stated that our airport is the only one of its class (and much larger) 
that has been profitable and running a business by the same people, same thing, since 1986.  
It has a constant flow in and constant flow out.  He pointed out that he wants the City 
Council to understand that the City only owns the land underneath the buildings which the 
airport advisory board built. Mayor Lopez assured him that they are well aware of that.  City 
Administrator Dora V. Rodriguez also shared that in many meetings they’ve attended, it’s 
always been mentioned that Devine does have a very unique airport.  He said the uniqueness 
starts with their hangars.  Mr. Brehm pointed out that we’re talking big money by installing a 
self-serve gas station.  He said this is revenue that the City is losing out on right now. 
 
City Administrator Dora V. Rodriguez told Mr. Brehm that she would certainly bring this up 
to City Council.  She said it’s something to consider. 
 
City Administrator Dora V. Rodriguez apologized to Hap Squires for still having his check 
and not being able to do anything with it.  City Attorney Tom Cate mentioned that this is 
only a little part of the problem that we have.  He said he’d like to hear from the rest of the 
board to see what they think about the leases. 
 
Discussion was held on the leases.  Mr. Tony Crosby said he felt the City of Devine should 
negotiate the leases individually with the board members.  Curly Brehm mentioned that Hap 
Squires has been mistreated.  Mr. Squires said he’s not been mistreated; he just hasn’t been 
able to get a lease.  Mr. Squires said there’s a CPI adjustment that is not in the other leases.  
He said he has no objection to the CPI; he does on the increase of the leases after the 
renewals. 
 
Mr. Squires suggested that they all review their leases and write down any suggestions; he 
said this will be the first renewal, but we need to all be in agreement. 
 
 
 



Airport Advisory Board Minutes 
January 26, 2009 
Page 5 
 
 
City Attorney Tom Cate suggested we do this in five year increments.  He said the leases 
should be for a maximum of 20 years, with five year renewal periods.  Tom asked the board 
to take a look at their leases and bring them back with any changes.  The board members 
also reviewed a map of the leases and held discussion.  Hap Squires, Bill Bain and Russ 
Pumphrey all said they would sign their leases. 
 
Motioned by C.E. Curley Brehm, seconded by Russ Pumphrey for the board to review the 
leases and return to the City in two weeks with the understanding that the new terms will 
just apply to the new leases; and to have City Council consider installing a self-service gas 
station at the airport. 
 
There being no further business to come before the governing body, motion was made by 
Hap Squires to adjourn the meeting. 
 
             
         Mayor 
 
      
      City Secretary 
 
             
             Airport Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 


